
 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d ,  L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
Ph: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 | www. l i n co ln sh i re i l . gov  

AGENDA
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

Village Hall – Board Room
Monday, September 10, 2018

Following Regular Village Board Meeting

Reasonable accommodations / auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively participate in any 
public meetings of the Board.  Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need

special accommodations to attend. The Committee of the Whole will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the 
majority of the Trustees to do so. Citizens wishing to address the Board on agenda items may speak when the agenda item is open, 

prior to Board discussion.

CALL TO ORDER
1.0 ROLL CALL

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
2.1 Acceptance of the August 27, 2018 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS
3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use

3.11 Consideration of a 2-Lot Single-Family Subdivision (Achi) in 
Unincorporated Lake County (23344 N. Indian Creek Road)

3.12 Consideration of an Out-of-Village Water Service (2344 N. Indian Creek 
Road)

3.13 Consideration of a 2-Lot Single Family Subdivision (Elm Estates) in 
Unincorporated Lake County (23477 N. Elm Road)

3.2 Finance and Administration
3.21 Consideration and Discussion of Proposed Goals for 2019 (Village of 

Lincolnshire)

3.3 Public Works

3.4 Public Safety
3.41 Consideration of a Resolution Approving an Agreement Pertaining to the 

Regulations of Traffic and Parking on Lincolnshire-Prairie View School 
District #103 Property (School District #103)

3.42 Consideration of Reciprocal Reporting Agreement Between Lincolnshire-
Prairie View School District #103 and the Village of Lincolnshire (Village 
of Lincolnshire & School District #103)

3.5 Parks and Recreation

3.6 Judiciary and Personnel

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
5.0 NEW BUSINESS
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION
7.0 ADJOURNMENT



 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
w w w . l i n co l n s h i re i l . g o v  

2.1
MINUTES

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
Monday, August 27, 2018

Present:
Mayor Brandt Trustee Harms Muth
Trustee Grujanac Trustee Hancock
Trustee McDonough Trustee Servi
Trustee Leider Village Clerk Mastandrea
Village Attorney Simon Village Manager Burke
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson Public Works Director Woodbury
Chief of Police Leonas Assistant Village Manager/Community &
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Economic Development Director Gilbertson

Engineer Dittrich Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya

ROLL CALL
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:50 p.m. and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll.

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
2.1 Acceptance of the August 6, 2018 Special Committee of the Whole 

Meeting Minutes

The minutes of the August 6, 2018 Special Committee of the Whole Meeting 
were approved as submitted.

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use

3.11 Preliminary Evaluation of a Petition for a Major Amendment to 
Westgate of Lincolnshire Planned Unit Development (PUD) to 
Install a Fence on a Berm along Route 22/Half Day Road (Westgate 
of Lincolnshire Homeowner’s Association)

Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 
Director Gilbertson provided a summary of the preliminary evaluation of 
a petition for a Major Amendment to Westgate of Lincolnshire Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) to install a fence on a berm along Route 
22/Half Day Road. The request has the following three zoning 
exceptions: height of fence from the maximum permitted 6’ to 8’, 
placement of fence on a berm, and style of fence. The petitioner is also 
requesting a fee waiver of application fees which has been awarded to 
other non-for-profit corporations. Assistant Village Manager/CED 
Director Gilbertson stated the next step, if approved is referral to the 



Page 2
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
August 27, 2018

Architectural Review Board (ARB), a Public Hearing at a Committee of 
the Whole then approval at a Regular Village Board meeting.

Mr. Gordon Grote provided a presentation regarding Westgate’s petition 
for a Major Amendment to Westgate of Lincolnshire Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) to install a fence on a berm along Route 22/Half 
Day Road. Mr. Grote stated students from Stevenson High School cut 
through the berm along with illegal parking in the area. 

Mayor Brandt asked staff if they knew what the height of the fence was 
that Stevenson High School recently installed on the back of their 
property which was constructed as part of the new construction. Staff 
did not have the fence height for the new fence at Stevenson High 
School. 

Trustee Harms Muth asked if a big fence was going to be viewed all 
along Route 22 without any additional landscaping. Mr. Grote stated this 
is correct; the berm itself is heavily landscaped. Mr. Grote stated they 
will only have the fence along half of the property, and they have a 
landscape plan for the proposed project. 

Trustee Leider asked if there will be landscaping between the fence and 
Route 22. Mr. Grote provided a landscape plan; they will be planting salt 
resistant plants and will not be taking down any trees. 

Trustee Harms Muth noted concern regarding the fence material and 
the view of a big wall of fence along Route 22. Trustee Harms Muth 
asked how many Stevenson students live in Westage. Mr. Grote stated 
they did not have a lot of Stevenson students. Mayor Brandt stated 
there is a sidewalk students can use to go to Hotz Road from Westgate.
Trustee Harms Muth stated she understands the issue but would hate to 
hide the current vegetation and see a wall of fence. 

Village Attorney Simon stated the next step in the process would be to 
refer this to the ARB. The ARB will look at the landscape plan and 
design of the fence, and then it will come back before the Board before 
it gets approved. 

All Trustees recommended adding landscaping so the appearance is 
not a wall of fencing. 

It was the consensus of the Board to refer this to the Architectural 
Review Board.

3.12 Preliminary Evaluation of a Petitioner for a Major Amendment to 
the Lincolnshire Marketplace Planned Unit Development (PUD) to 
Permit Existing Culver’s Wall signs to be Internally Illuminated 
(Culver’s of Lincolnshire)



Page 3
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
August 27, 2018

Economic Development Coordinator provided a summary of the 
preliminary evaluation of Culver’s petition for a Major Amendment to the 
Lincolnshire Marketplace Planned Unit Development (PUD) to permit 
existing Culver’s wall sign to be internally illuminated. Economic 
Development Coordinator Zozulya stated if this is approved tonight the 
next steps would be to refer this to the ARB, then a Public Hearing at a 
Committee of the Whole, and approval at a Regular Village Board 
meeting.

Mr. Kevin Weasler, Owner of Culver’s provided a presentation of their 
petition for a Major Amendment to the Lincolnshire Marketplace 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) to permit existing Culver’s wall sign to 
be internally illuminated. Mr. Weasler provided photos of the current 
sign at night and what it would look like illuminated. Mr. Weasler noted 
their night time traffic is not as good as desired and noticed immediately 
illumination was an issue. 

Trustee Grujanac stated it seems like the precedent has been set and it 
is the right thing to do. 

Trustee Leider asked if it would only be illuminated when the business is 
operating. Mr. Weasler confirmed the proposed sign would only be 
illuminated when Culver’s is open. 

It was the consensus of the Board to refer this to the Architectural 
Review Board.

3.2 Finance and Administration
3.21 Consideration of Approval of an Investment Advisory Agreement 

and Custodian Account Agreement with Sawyer Falduto Asset 
Management (Village of Lincolnshire)

Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson provided a summary of a proposed 
Investment Advisory Agreement and Custodian Account Agreement 
with Sawyer Falduto Asset Management. This is to assist staff in 
managing the Village’s investment activities consistent with the primary 
policy objectives of maintaining safety of principal and liquidity, while 
maximizing investment returns.

It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.

3.22 Consideration of an Ordinance Dissolving the Village of 
Lincolnshire “Fund 21” (Westminster Way Transportation Special 
Service Area 1A) (Village of Lincolnshire)

Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson provided a summary of an
Ordinance Dissolving the Village of Lincolnshire “Fund 21” (Westminster 
Way Transportation Special Service Area 1A).



Page 4
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
August 27, 2018

It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.

3.23 Consideration of Approval of a Utility Tax Audit Service Agreement 
with Azavar Solutions (Village of Lincolnshire)

Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson provided a summary of a proposed 
Utility Tax Audit Service Agreement with Azavar Solutions. Staff has 
selected Azavar Government Solutions to provide utility tax audit 
services in exchange for a 40% contingency based fee over a three 
year period.

Village Manager Burke noted the title on the memo narrowly defines 
what the Professional Service Agreement is and stated Staff is looking 
at auditing a variety of revenue sources.  

Village Attorney Simon stated it has been emphasized to Azavar that 
they will only be auditing the existing tax structure. We will not get a 
contingency fee for a tax that is not currently levied. Trustee Servi asked 
if there is a cap for the fees that may be shared with the auditing firm.
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson stated the fee drops when 
additional Villages sign on. Village Manager Burke stated the max 
payout is not capped. 

Village Attorney Simon provided detail regarding the types of audits 
Azavar will perform.

Trustee Servi asked staff to provide what type of money came out of the 
last audit. 

It was the consensus of the Board to place this on the next Regular 
Village Board Agenda.

3.3 Public Works
3.31 Consideration of a Professional Engineering Service Contract with 

Patrick Engineering, Inc., for Illinois Route 22 Emergency Access 
Design, Permits and Bidding Services at a Cost not to Exceed 
$69,770.53 (Village of Lincolnshire)

Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich provided a 
summary of a Professional Engineering Service Contract with Patrick 
Engineering, Inc., for Illinois Route 22 Emergency Access Design, 
Permits and Bidding Services at a cost not to exceed $69,770.53.

It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.

3.32 Consideration of a Professional Engineering Services Contract 



Page 5
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
August 27, 2018

with Ciorba Group, Inc. at a cost not to Exceed $18,744.35 for 
Preparation of Bid Plans/Specifications for an Emergency 
Alternative Water Supply Connection (Village of Lincolnshire)

Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich provided a 
summary of a Professional Engineering Service Contract with Ciorba 
Group, Inc. at a cost not to exceed $18,744.35 for preparation of bid 
plans/specifications for an emergency alternative water supply 
connection with Buffalo Grove.

It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.

3.33 Concurrence to Sign a Letter of Intent with the Village of Buffalo 
Grove for an Alternative Water Supply Connection (Village of 
Lincolnshire)

Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich provided a 
summary of a Letter of Intent with the Village of Buffalo Grove for an 
Alternative Water Supply Connection.

Village Manager Burke stated a more detailed Intergovernmental 
Agreement will follow pertaining to the operation of the connection. 

Trustee Harms Muth asked what an alternative water supply was. 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich stated
currently, the Village’s water supply comes solely from the City of 
Highland Park so if anything happens with their operations, we should
have a way of getting water from some other source. Trustee Harms 
Muth asked who provides Buffalo Grove their water. Village Manager 
Burke stated Buffalo Grove purchases their water through Evanston via 
the Northwest Water Commission. Village Manager Burke added this
would be considered an emergency water interconnect. 

It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.

3.4 Public Safety

3.5 Parks and Recreation

3.6 Judiciary and Personnel

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
5.0 NEW BUSINESS
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION

7.0 ADJOURNMENT



Page 6
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
August 27, 2018

Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to adjourn. 
Upon a voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared 

Respectfully submitted,

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE

Barbara Mastandrea
Village Clerk



 

Agenda Item 
3.11; 3.12; 3.13 

COW 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole 

September 10, 2018 
 

Subject:  Single-Family Subdivision and Water Utility Connection in 
Unincorporated Lake County - 23344 N. Indian Creek Road and 
23477 N. Elm Road 
 

Action Requested: Consideration of the Following Requests: 
 
3.11   2-Lot Single-Family  Subdivision (Achi) in Unincorporated    

Lake County (23344 N. Indian Creek Road) 
 
3.12   An Out-of-Village Water Service  (23344 N. Indian Creek 

Road)  
 
3.13   2-Lot Single-Family  Subdivision (Elm Estates) in 

Unincorporated Lake County (23477 N. Elm Road) 
  

Petitioner:  Lake County 
Originated By/Contact: Wally Dittrich, Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 

Department of Public Works 
 
Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator  
Department of Community & Economic Development 
 

Advisory Board Review: None 
 

 
Background: 
� Lake County, on behalf of Mr. Achi Gopal and Icon Building Group, seeks the Village’s 

review and approval of the following two unincorporated subdivisions within 1.5 miles of 
Lincolnshire corporate limits:  
 

1. A two-lot Achi Subdivision and related water service connection - 23344 N. Indian 
Creek Road, and   

2. A two-lot Elm Estates Subdivision - 23477 N. Elm Road  
 

� The 2-acre 23344 N. Indian 
Creek Road property, owned by 
Mr. Venkata Gopal Achi and Ms. 
Sridevi Achi, is located along the 
west side of North Indian Creek 
Road, between Olde Half Day 
Road to the south and Port 
Clinton Road to the north, as 
shown in Figure 1 and in the 
attached location map (see 
attached Document 1). The 
Village’s municipal boundary 
runs along the west side of the 

Figure 1 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11; 3.12; 3.13 

COW 
 

property, which is the Adlai E. Stevenson High School campus.   
 

� The 5-acre 23477 N. Elm Road 
property, owned by Icon Building 
Group, is located along the east 
side of Elm Road, north of Half 
Day Road, as shown in Figure 2 
and in the attached location map 
(see attached Document 2). The 
Village’s municipal boundary 
borders the area on the north and 
east (a single-family residential 
subdivision).   
 

� The Indian Creek property is 
zoned R-1 and the Elm Road 
property is zoned E in Lake 
County. According to the County’s Unified Development Ordinance, “the R-1 and E Districts 
are intended to accommodate low-density, large-lot residential development and to ensure 
the protection of areas that develop in such a manner.” The minimum lot size is 40,000 
square feet in R-1 zoning district and 80,000 square feet in the E zoning district.  
 

� These properties are within the jurisdiction of Lake County. However, Section 7-1-3 of Title 
7, Subdivision Code, gives the Village the authority to review subdivision proposals within 
1.5 miles of Village boundaries regarding all subdivision requirements in Title 7. All 
municipalities in Illinois have the same authority per State law. Therefore, the County 
requested the Village’s review of these requests. If the Village Board approves the 
subdivision requests, the Village will certify the final plats of subdivision before they are 
recorded by the County. The Village’s zoning requirements, such as lot size and frontage 
width, do not apply to unincorporated subdivision proposals within 1.5-miles of Village 
corporate limits.  
 

� The Village has reviewed a number of unincorporated property subdivisions in the past. The 
most recent unincorporated subdivision request was reviewed and approved by the Village 
Board in 2014 for a 2-lot Oak Acres Subdivision off Oak Lane, west of Elm Road.  

 
� The Village has also reviewed and granted water and sewer connections to unincorporated 

areas in 2018 on Elm Road and Port Clinton Road. The most recent request approved was 
for sanitary sewer connection at 23477 Elm Road (discussed below).   

 
 

Proposal Summary & Staff Comments:  
 
Achi Subdivision & Water Connection Request - Indian Creek Road 
� The proposal calls for a two-lot subdivision, Lot 1 and Lot 2 (see attached Document 3). The 

existing Indian Creek property is currently improved with a single-family home, which will 
remain on Lot 1. A new house will be built on Lot 2. Lot 1 is proposed to measure 40,521 
square feet with a frontage of 180’ along Indian Creek Road. Lot 2 is proposed to measure 
45,999 square feet and connect to Indian Creek Road via a driveway with a 20’ frontage.  

 
� The Village Board approved a water and sanitary sewer connection to Lot 1 in 2010. At that 

time, the property owner signed a pre-annexation agreement allowing the Village to annex it 

Figure 2 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11; 3.12; 3.13 

COW 
 

at the Village’s sole discretion at any time and made the water connection as approved by 
the Village Board. The property recently sold and the new owner submitted a plat of 
subdivision and water connection application to be able to construct a water connection for 
Lot 2.  
 

� With respect to Lot 2, the Village Engineer reviewed the proposed subdivision design and 
utility connection plans for compliance with the Village’s Subdivision Code and determined 
all subdivision and utility connection requirements have been met.  
 

� The property owner submitted a signed Agreement to Provide Water Supply and a water 
connection plan as well as the $150.00 filing fee (see attached Documents 4 and 5).Since 
the ownership of the property has changed, staff has requested the new owners submit a 
Petition to Annex along with their request for water service for Lot 2. They filed an 
Unconditional Petition to Annex as required by Section 8-2-3-1A-2 of the Village Code. A 
copy of the petition is attached (see attached Document 6). The Village Code states: “[t]he 
Village shall not be required to permit such annexation and may include conditions of 
annexation in any Annexation Agreement.” 

 
� The Public Works Department has no objections to approving this request for water 

connection.  
 
Elm Estates Subdivision - Elm Road 
� The proposal calls for a subdivision of an existing vacant property into two lots, Lot 1 and 

Lot 2 (see attached Document 7). Lot 1 is proposed to measure 96,751 square feet with a 
frontage of 248’ along Elm Road. Lot 2 is proposed to have no Elm Road frontage and is to 
connect to Elm Road via a 27’ wide access easement. The property previously contained a 
house and garages which have since been removed. Two new homes are proposed.    

 
� The Village Board approved a sanitary sewer connection extension agreement for one new 

home at its July 9, 2018 meeting (with an approval for a second sanitary service if the lot 
was subdivided). At that time, the property owner signed a pre-annexation agreement 
allowing the Village to annex it at the Village’s sole discretion at any time.  Water service is 
currently not provided as this would require the extension of the Village’s watermain from 
where it currently ends at 23436 Elm Road (south of this subject property). Were the 
property to be annexed by the Village, the Village would require the property owner to 
connect to Village water and pay for that service per Section 8-2-3 of the Village code.  

 
� The Village Engineer reviewed the proposed subdivision design for compliance with the 

Village’s Subdivision Code and determined all subdivision requirements have been met.  
 

Development Donations & Application Fees 
� The Subdivision Code allows the Village to assess park, school, and library fees for 

unincorporated subdivisions within 1.5-miles of Village boundaries in the same way donation 
fees for Village lots are assessed using code-prescribed formulas. Donations would be 
assessed for a net lot increase only. The park fee would be retained by the Village and used 
for park improvements, while school and library fees would be forwarded to Districts 103 and 
125 as well as the Vernon Area Public Library. Based on the current formulas, each new lot 
would generate the following donations:   

 
Donation Type 4-Bedroom 

House 
5-Bedroom 

House 
Park  $12,589.50 $12,589.50 
School District 103 $10,017.10 $7,194.00 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11; 3.12; 3.13 

COW 
 

School District 125 $3,302.70 $2,310.80 
Vernon Area Public Library  $500.00 $600.00 

  
� Staff does not have records of the Village charging donations for unincorporated 

subdivisions previously. It is possible subdividers entered into separate donation 
agreements with the library and school districts, which is permitted by code. The Village 
Attorney confirmed the Subdivision Code already authorizes the Village to assess 
donations. The Village Attorney also indicated the petitioner of unincorporated subdivisions 
has the ability to enter into donation agreements with the library and school districts directly, 
rather than paying these donations through the Village (the Village would still collect and 
maintain park donations).  

 
� Staff has surveyed five adjacent communities: Buffalo Grove, Vernon Hills, Deerfield, 

Highland Park, Lake Forest, and Lake Bluff regarding whether they charge donations for 
unincorporated subdivisions within 1.5 miles of their corporate boundaries (Lake Forest has 
not provided a response as of the writing of this memo). Staff learned from the survey the 
only community that charges development donations and application fees is Lake Bluff. 
Lake Bluff applies its code-prescribed formulas for donations and also charges application 
fees for unincorporated subdivision requests.  

 
� Staff proposes the Village require development donations to unincorporated properties 

within 1.5 miles of Lincolnshire consistently as such applications are brought forward for 
consideration.  

 
� In terms of application fees for unincorporated subdivisions, the current Comprehensive Fee 

schedule permits the Village to charge only one subdivision fee in the amount of $1,000. An 
incorporated subdivision requires Zoning Board review/recommendation and Village Board 
review/approval. An unincorporated subdivision only requires review and approval by the 
Village Board. Given unincorporated properties require less review by the Village Board and 
staff, staff recommends revising the Comprehensive Fee Schedule to adopt a reduced 
application fee of $500 for unincorporated properties.          

 
Potential Annexation & Impact to Village Services - Indian Creek and Elm Road Areas 
� The Elm Road and Indian Creek properties are part of larger unincorporated areas that 

represent annexation opportunities. The two areas consist of single-family residential homes 
on lots ranging from 1-5 acres. At the terminus of Elm Road is Tamarak Day Camp. The 
Lincolnshire Club, within the Village limits, is located at the entrance to the Elm Road area 
off Half Day Road.   
 

� In 1994, by Ordinance No.94-1333-17, the Village annexed three properties (23423, 23444 
and 23461 Indian Creek Road), measuring a total of 8 acres, at the north terminus of Indian 
Creek Road, intersecting with Port Clinton Road, to strategically establish the municipal 
limits bounding this area. 

 
� Many of the properties within this area contain code non-conformities (e.g., lot width, 

setbacks, detached garages, multiple detached structures). If annexed, these non-
conformities would be allowed to remain subject to restrictions of Chapter 13, Non-
Conforming Uses, Structures and Lots. New subdivisions and construction activity would be 
subject to Village codes. Village staff would monitor and enforce property maintenance 
violations, such as tall grass and recreational vehicles, to ensure all properties are 
maintained to minimum Village standards.  
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11; 3.12; 3.13 

COW 
 
� The annexation of these areas would allow the Village to regulate future redevelopment of 

the parcels through building permit issuance to avoid further incongruent land subdivisions 
and require subdivisions consistent with Village regulations and development objectives. 
The Village Future Land Use Map (see attached Document 8) shows development of the 
Indian Creek and Elm Road areas consistent with the “Traditional Lot Residential” and 
“Estate Residential” land use classifications, respectively.  
 

� Snow removal for the Elm Road and Indian Creek Road is performed by Vernon Township, 
per an intergovernmental agreement with Vernon Township. For those portions of the roads 
within Lincolnshire, the Village is responsible for road maintenance, including repairs and 
upgrades to stormwater drainage. Upon annexation, road maintenance would shift to the 
Village. The areas have seen new home construction in the past 10 years. Presently, 18 
properties on Indian Creek Road and 12 Elm Road properties are connected to the Village’s 
sewer and water (see attached Document 9). They have all consented to annexation at 
Lincolnshire’s sole discretion at any time in the future, as a condition of the Village extending 
utilities to those properties.  

 
� Police response to both the Elm Road and Indian Creek areas is provided by Lake County 

Sheriff’s Department. Annexation of these areas into Lincolnshire would shift police services 
to the Village. Fire Protection services to the entire area are provided by Lincolnshire-
Riverwoods Fire Protection District and would remain upon annexation.  
 

� Not all areas within Elm Road and Indian Creek Road maintain contiguity to Lincolnshire. If 
the Board is interested in considering annexations, staff will consult with the Village Attorney 
on annexation eligibility. If the Village Board is interested in incremental annexations of 
those properties with utility connections and pre-annexation agreements, the Village could 
annex them at any time.  

 
Approval Process: 
Unincorporated lot subdivisions and utility connection requests are reviewed by the Village 
Board only. Advisory boards are not involved.  
 
Recommendation: 
Consideration of the proposed subdivision and water connection requests and placement on the 
September 24, 2018 Regular Village Board consent agenda and direction to staff regarding 
development donations and subdivision application fees for unincorporated subdivisions within  
1.5 miles of Lincolnshire. Staff does not recommend annexation of the Indian Creek and Elm 
Road properties at this time, which is consistent with the Village’s past practices.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
� Document 1: Location map for 23344 N. Indian Creek Road. 
� Document 2: Location map for 23477 N. Elm Road.  
� Document 3: Plat of Subdivision for 23344 N. Indian Creek Road.  
� Document 4: Plat of Subdivision for 23477 N. Elm Road. 
� Document 5: Water Connection Agreement. 
� Document 6: Water connection plan.  
� Document 7: Petition for Annexation, 23477 N. Elm Road. 
� Document 8: Future Land Use Map and land use classifications.  
� Document 9: Out-of-Village Utility Connection Maps. 

     
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.11; 3.12; 3.13 

COW 
 

Meeting History 
Committee of the Whole Preliminary Evaluation (current) September 10, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V:\Property_File\INDN-
CRK\23344\SUBDIVISION_WATERCONNECTION\2018_09_10_COW_Subdivision_WaterConnect.docx 



23344 
 N. Indian
Creek Rd

23344 N. Indian Creek Road Location Map 

Document 1



23477 N El Rd

23477 N. Elm Road Location Map

Document 2



Document 3



Document 4





Documents 5  



















Document 6



Document 7





Document 8



is as follows and should consistently be utilized to
properly steer the planning interests of the commu-
nity for consideration of development proposals
made subsequent to its adoption and overall guid-

ance in its future growth:

Future Land Use Classification Purpose

Statements
To guide the future land use and development of
areas within and adjacent to the Village’s corporate
boundary in an appropriate manner, the following
Future Land Use Classification Purpose Statements
have been established to identify and define the char-
acter sought at these locations. These future land use
designations are consistent with those illustrated
upon the Future Land Use Map (see Maps, Chapter
10), thus incorporating the map by reference as a

visual representation of the Plan’s text.

Estate Residential

The purpose of this classification is to preserve the
semi-rural character that is adjacent to or on the
fringe of the Village’s municipal boundary while being
attentive to the environmental sensitivities that are
present in these areas. Areas located within this land
use classification typically display a high level of envi-
ronmental sensitivity due to the presence of
woodlands, wetlands, water features, floodplains,
floodways and/or other such resources of wildlife
habitat. The prevalence of these highly sensitive envi-
ronmental features requires significant design
consideration to minimize developmental impact

upon such areas. As a result, development densities
in these areas may range from 0.5 to 1.0 dwelling
units per acre, depending upon overall site con-
straints and general site characteristics. However,
the individual lots within this designation should not
be less than 1.0 acre in size, inclusive of the land area
of conservancy easements upon individual lots.
Elements of conservation design should be employed
in these areas to preserve natural features and
opportunities to create greenways as open space.
While the primary intent of this land use classification
is the conservation of existing environmental fea-
tures, such design is also encouraged in areas that do
not contain expansive elements of natural sensitivity
to ensure the creation of residential development in

a unified manner. 

Traditional Lot Residential

This land use classification is indicative of the tradi-
tional neighborhood character generally located
south of Half Day Road and east of the Des Plaines
River. As the historical foundation from which the
Village has grown today, these areas offer a unique
character as the most established neighborhoods
within the community. Due to the established nature
of this classification, densities of properties within
this designation may range from 1.0-2.0 dwelling
units per acre, with 2.0 dwelling units per acre being
prevalent. As such, existing residential developments
located within this land use classification must ensure
the preservation of this distinctly established charac-
ter. Likewise, undeveloped areas within this land use
classification should seek to attain this same level of
character upon their development. Although it is rec-
ognized that the level of environmental sensitivity of
these areas does not require the creation of conser-
vation outlots as a general policy, careful
consideration should be given to the incorporation of
such neighborhood preservation techniques that may
be specifically tailored to maintain the conditions of
each individual parcel or tract and ensure a unified
character of adjacent land areas upon development.
Tree preservation should continue as a primary goal
throughout these established neighborhoods, as well

as in those areas that have yet to be developed. 

Environmentally Sensitive Residential

The purpose of this land use classification is to per-
mit detached single-family residential development in

15Village of Lincolnshire - Comprehensive Plan

CH

2

OVERVIEW
UPDATE
2012

UPDATE 2012

Mission Statement

The Mission of the Update 2012 Plan is to

maintain and enhance the distinct character

of the Village of Lincolnshire by balancing

the built environment with the natural ele-

ments in a harmonious manner through the

practice of sound planning efforts to ensure

land use compatibility and to encourage

development to sustain the social and eco-

nomic welfare of the community.

Estate RResidentialRR

TTraditional Lot RTT esidentialRR



Story
Book Ln

M
ilw

aukee Ave

Aptakisic Rd

M
ilw

aukee Ave

Half Day Rd

Ashley Ct

Half Day Rd

Pa
la

zz
o 

D
r

S
c h

e l
te

r R
d

St
ev

en
so

n 
D

r

Olde
Half

Day
Rd

H
ot

z 
R

d

M
ilw

aukee Ave

S
to

ry
Bo

ok
Ln

K
nig htsbrid ge

P
kw

y

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

R
d

Pa
r k

w
a y

D
r

Half Day Rd

W
illiam

sburg
Ln

Olde Half Day Rd

E 
W

rit
er

 C
t

Route 45

Parkway

Dr

Barclay Blvd

Half Day Rd

Westgate Dr

A
udubon

W
ay

Half 
Day R

d

Half Day Rd

Audubon Way

M
ilw

aukee
Ave

Olde Half Day Rd

Farrington D
r

ParkwayDr

Pr
ai

rie
 R

d

Knightsbridge Pkwy

O
ak

w
oo

d 
Ln

Portshire Dr

Mayfair Ln

Westminster Way

Dover Cir

Fox Trl

Cemetery Rd

Westminster Way

W
oo

d
C

re
ek

D
r

Half Day Rd

CemeteryRd

RampD
ev

on
sh

ire
Ln

Whitmore Ln

Tower Pkwy

Bram
pton Ln

R
am

p

Old
Mill

Rd

Port Clinton Rd

Christine Ct

Dartmouth Ct
Andover Ct

Beaconsfield

C
t

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

R
d

Groton Ct

B
arclay Blvd

C
an

te
rb

ur
y 

R
d

Aud ubon Way

Ke
nt

Ct

H
ot

ch
ki

ss
 C

t

B
er

ks
h i

r e
Ln

Danforth

Ct

Surrey Ln

Do
ve

r
Ci

r

River Grove Ln

Half Day Rd

C
ho

at
e 

C
tExeter Ct

Half Day Rd

Windsor Dr

Taylor Ct

Half Day Rd

Half Day Rd

Ram
p

Jamestown Ln

Half Day Rd

Sanctuary Point Court

B
ru

n s
w

i c
k

Ln

N
 E

lm
 R

d

Du
ke

s L
n

Brockman Ave

Newcastle Ln

Ct Of
Natchez

Sa
nc

tu
ar

y 
Po

in
t

Co
ur

t

Warwick Ln

Buxton
Ct

Ke
ns

in
gt

on
 D

r

Old Mill R
d

Half Day Rd

Ramp

Windward Ln

Hastings Ln

Pa
rk

wa
y

D
r

Parton Ct

K
ni

gh
tsbridge Pkw

y

W
es

tm
in

st
er

W
ay

Pa
rkw

ay
D

r

Half Day
Rd

Duffy Ln

M
illbrook

D
r

Westwood Ln

King
sto

n C
t

Fo

xTrl

Astor Ct

M
ill

br
oo

k 
D

r

Sheffield Ct

Belm
ont D

r

La
nc

as
te

r L
n

Town Center Rd

Farrington Ct

W
hi

tb
y

C
t

W
estm

ins ter
W

a y

Jamestown
Ln

Exmoor Ln

Som
m

erset Ln

H
ew

itt
 D

r

As
hl

ey
 C

t

Oxford Dr

Farrington Dr

Olde Half

Day
R

d

Elsinoor D
r

D
uk

es
 C

ir

Belm
on

t D
r

Raabe Ct

Cum
berla

nd D
r

Coldstream
C

i r

Bramley

Pl

Fallstone Dr

Pa
rkway Dr

M
iddlebury Ln

Br
id

le
 T

ra
il 

R
d

Camberley Ln

C
le

nd
en

in
 L

n

N
Indian Creek Rd

N
 E

lm
 R

d

M
i lw

aukee
Ave

Hewitt Dr

Ri
ve

rw
oo

ds
Rd

Dawson Ct

Mayland Villa Ct

Half Day Rd

Old
Mill R

d

Cherokee Ln

R
aleigh D

r

St
af

fo
rd

Ct

N
 R

ic
ha

rd
s 

C
t

C
hr

is
tin

e 
C

t

S
a r

a h
Bl

vd

Surrey Ln

Cambridge Ln

Sherwood Dr

Knightsbridge Pkwy

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

Pem
broke D

r

Aptakisic Rd

Lee Ln

O
lsen C

t

Yorkshire Dr

Cedar Ln

Menna Ln

Half Day Rd

Trafalg
ar

Sq

R
el

ia
nc

e  
Ln

Lincolnshire
Dr

B
yrne

Blvd

Kings Cross Dr

Highcroft Way

Wiltshire Dr

Farner Ct

Marriott Dr

Royal Ct

G
 K

 L
n

E Port Clinton Rd

Bristol Ct

Marriott Dr

Parkway Dr

D
ee

r R
un

Suffie l d
Sq

Robinhood Ct

Marriott Dr

Grenadier Ct

M
ilw

aukee Ave

Phe
asant Row

Tri State International

Ly
ng

by
 C

t

Queens Way

N Elm Rd

Friar Tuck Ct

Victoria Ln

Knightsbridge Pkwy

Tri State International

R
ol

lin
gw

oo
ds

 L
n

Bond St

Course Dr

Oak Ln

Ki
ng

st
on

 R
ow

Robinwood Ct

W
el

l in
gt

on
C

t

Pl
ym

ou
th

 C
t

Th
or

nw
oo

d 
Ln

StonegateCir

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

Be
df

o r
d

C
t

Bri ttan y
Ln

Tower Pkwy

Pr
ai

rie
 L

n

Buckingham Pl

C
al

vi
n 

C
t

Aptakisic Rd

Buckingham Pl

C
ar

ol
in

e 
C

t

E Writer Ct

M
ap

le
 P

l

Th
or

nf
ie

ld
s 

Ln

N Elm Rd

C
hi

pp
e w

a
Pa

th
w

ay

R
os

e 
Te

r

Aptakisic Rd

In
di

an
Tr

ai
lD

r

D
arby

Ln

Shaw
nee

Tr l

Regent Ln

Fairfax Ln

H
ic

ko
ry

 L
n

Interstate 94

El
m

w
oo

d 
Ln

R
ob

in
w

oo
d 

Ln

M
i lw

aukee
A ve

A
bbotsfor d

Dr

Julie Ln

O
ve

rlo
ok

 P
t

Ve
rn

on
 T

rl

Anglican Ln

Carlisle Ln

Interstate 94

Rivershire Ct

Margate Dr

Prairie R
d

N Elm Rd

Nottingham Dr

St
re

ng
er

 L
n

St
e v

e n
s o

n
D

r

Cornell Dr

Marriott Dr

Victoria Ln

Gregg Rd

Whytegate Ct

In
du

st
ria

l D
r

Melrose Ln

Londonderry Ln

Ram
p

Apple Orchard Ln

Cherrywood Ln

R
ivershire Pl

Es
se

x
Ln

Tr
ill

iu
m

 L
n

Edgewood Ct

Heathrow Dr

O
ld

M
i ll C

i r

River Oaks Dr

N Elm Rd

E Mill Rd

Mayland Villa Rd

Ap
pl

e 
H

ill
 L

n

Riverside Rd

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

Brampton Ln

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

Vi
lla

ge
 G

re
en

ElsinoorD
r

Fallstone
D

r

Sutton Ct

Half Day Rd

Pembroke
D

r

Half Day Rd

Surrey
Ln

Half Day RdHalf Day Rd

Brampton Ln

R
iv

e r
w

o o
ds

R
d

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

R
d

Rivershire Ln

Br
am

pt
on

Ln

Dukes Ln

D
uk

es
C

t

Bram
pto

n

C

t

FoxTrl

Fox
Trl

B
ea

consfield
C

t Beaconsfield Ct

Farrington Cir

Dur
ha

m
C

t

Coventry Ln

Surrey
C

t

Abbey Rd

Preston Ct

Hamilton Ct

Briarwood Ln

Briarwood Ln

Northampton Ln

Ashford
Ct

Beaconsfield

Ct

M
ilw

aukee Ave

M
ilw

aukee Ave

±
NonVillage_WaterService

AVL 5/18/2018

0 440 880220
Feet

Map Legend
Out of Village Water Service (156 addresses)

Document 9



Story
Book Ln

M
ilw

aukee Ave

Aptakisic Rd

Half Day Rd

Ashley Ct

Half Day Rd

Pa
la

zz
o 

D
r

S c
h e

lt e
r R

d

St
ev

en
so

n 
D

r

Olde
Half

Day
Rd

H
ot

z 
R

d

M
ilw

aukee

Ave

Ke
sw

ick
Ct

S
to

ry
Bo

o k
Ln

K
nig htsbrid ge

Pkw
y

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

Half Day Rd

W
illiam

sburg
Ln

Olde Half Day Rd

E 
W

rit
er

 C
t

Route 45

B
ar

cl
ay

Bl
vd

Half Day Rd

W

estgate Dr

A
udubon

W
ay

Half 
Day R

d

Half Day Rd

M
ilw

aukee
Ave

Duffy Ln

Farrington Dr

Elsinoor D
r

Pr
ai

rie
 R

d

Knightsbridge Pkwy

O
ak

w
oo

d 
Ln

Portshire Dr

Mayfair Ln

Westminster W
ay

Dover Cir

Fox Trl

Cemetery Rd

W
es

tm
ins

te
r

W
ay

W
oo

d
C

re
ek

D
r

Half Day Rd

Oak Ln

CemeteryRd

Ramp

D
ev

on
sh

ire
Ln

Whitmore Ln

Tower Pkwy

Bra
m

pt
on

Ln

R
am

p

Old
Mill

Rd

Port Clinton Rd

Christine Ct

Dartmouth Ct
Andover Ct

Beaconsfield

C
t

Middlesex Ct

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

R
d

Groton Ct

Windsor Dr

Ba
rc

la
y

B l
vd

C
an

te
rb

ur
y 

R
d

Northfield Ct

Audubon Way

Ke
nt

Ct

H
ot

ch
ki

ss
 C

t

Be
rk

sh
ire

 L
n

Da

nfor
th

Ct

Surrey Ln

River Grove Ln

Half Day Rd

C
hoate

C
t

Exeter Ct

Half Day Rd

E
W

rite
r

Ct

Taylor Ct

Half Day Rd

Half Day Rd

Ram
p

Jamestown Ln

Half Day Rd

Sanctuary Point Court

B
ru

n s
w

ic
k

L n

N
 E

lm
 R

d

Dukes Ln

Brockman Ave

Newcastle Ln

Ct Of
Natchez

Sa
nc

tu
ar

y 
Po

in
t

Co
ur

t

Warwick Ln

Buxton
Ct

Ke
ns

in
gt

on
 D

r

Old Mill R
d

Half Day Rd

Ramp

Windward Ln
M

iddlebury Ln

Rive
rshire

Ln

Hastings Ln

Pa
rk

wa
y

D
r

Parton Ct

Kn
igh

tsbridge Pkw

y

W

estminster Way

W
es

tm
in

st
er

W
ay

Pa
rkw

ay
Dr

Half Day
Rd

M
illbrook

D
r

Westwood Ln

King
sto

n C
t

Fallstone Dr

Fo

xTrl

Astor Ct

M
ill

br
oo

k 
D

r

Sheffield Ct

Be
lm

on
tD

r

La
nc

as
te

r L
n

Town Center Rd

W
hi

tb
y

C
t

W
estm

ins ter
W

ay

Jamestown
Ln

Exmoor Ln

Som
m

erset Ln

Farrington Dr

H
ew

itt
 D

r

As
hl

ey
 C

t

Oxford Dr

K e
n

tC
t

O
ld

e 
H

al
f

D
ay

 R
d

Olde Half Day

Rd

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

R
d

D
uk

es
 C

ir

Interstate 94

Audubon Way

Raabe Ct

Cumberla
nd D

r

C
oldstream

C
ir

Bramley Pl

Pa
rkway Dr

Br
id

le
 T

ra
il 

R
d

Camberley Ln

C
le

nd
en

in
 L

n

N

Indian Creek Rd

Hewitt Dr

P
ar

kw
ay

D
r

Mayland Villa Ct

Half Day Rd

Old
Mill R

d

Interstate 94

Cherokee Ln

R
aleigh D

r

St
af

fo
rd

Ct

N
 R

ic
ha

rd
s 

C
t

C
hr

is
tin

e 
C

t

S
a r

ah
B

lvd

Surrey Ln

Cambridge Ln

Sherwood Dr

Knightsbridge Pkwy

Dukes Ln

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

P
em

broke
D

r

Aptakisic Rd

Lee Ln

O
lsen C

t

Yorkshire Dr

Cedar Ln

Menna Ln

Half Day Rd

Traf
alg

ar
Sq

R
el

ia
nc

e 
Ln

L incolnshire
Dr

B
yrne

Blvd

C
hi

pp
ew

a
P

at
hw

ay

Kings Cross Dr

HighcroftWay

Wiltshire Dr

Indian
Tra il D

r

Farner Ct

Marriott Dr

Royal Ct

Shaw
nee Trl

G
 K

 L
n

E Port Clinton Rd

Bristol Ct

Marriott Dr

D
ee

r R
un

Robinhood Ct

Marriott Dr

Grenadier Ct

M
ilw

aukee Ave
Pheasant Row

Tri State International

Ly
ng

by
 C

t

Queens Way

N Elm Rd

Friar Tuck Ct

Victoria Ln

Ve
rn

on
 T

rl

Knightsbridge Pkwy

Julie Ln

R
ol

lin
gw

oo
ds

 L
n

Bond St

Course Dr

Ki
ng

st
on

 R
ow

Robinwood Ct

W
e l

lin
g t

on
C

tPl
ym

ou
th

 C
t

Th
or

nw
oo

d 
Ln

Stonega te

Cir

Be
df

o r
d

C
t

Brittany Ln

Tower Pkwy

Pr
ai

rie
 L

n

Buckingham Pl

C
al

vi
n 

C
t

Aptakisic Rd

Buckingham Pl

C
ar

ol
in

e 
C

t

E Writer Ct

M
ap

le
 P

l

Th
or

nf
ie

ld
s 

Ln

N Elm Rd

R
os

e 
Te

r

Aptakisic Rd

D
arby

Ln

Regent Ln

Fairfax Ln

H
ic

ko
ry

 L
n

N
 E

lm
 R

d

El
m

w
oo

d 
Ln

R
ob

in
w

oo
d  

Ln

M
i lw

aukee
Ave

A
bbotsford Dr

O
ve

rlo
ok

 P
t

Anglican Ln

In
du

st
ria

l D
r

Carlisle Ln

Rivershire Ct

Margate Dr

Prairie R
d

N Elm Rd

Nottingham Dr

St
re

ng
er

 L
n

Ram
p

S
te

v e
n s

o n
D

r

Cornell Dr

Marriott Dr

Victoria Ln

Gregg Rd

Whytegate Ct

Melrose Ln

Londonderry Ln

Apple Orchard Ln

Cherrywood Ln

R
ivershire Pl

Es
se

x
Ln

Tr
ill

iu
m

 L
n

Edgewood Ct

Heathrow Dr

O
ld

M
ill C

ir
River Oaks Dr

N Elm Rd

E Mill Rd

Mayland Villa Rd

Ap
pl

e 
H

ill
 L

n

Riverside Rd

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

M
ilw

aukee Ave

Brampton Ln

R
iv

er
w

oo
ds

 R
d

Vi
lla

ge
G

re
e n

Half Day Rd

Pembroke Dr

Half Day Rd

Surrey Ln

Half Day Rd

Rivershire Ln

D
uk

es
C

t

Bram
pto

n

C t

FoxTrl

Fox T
rl

B
ea

consfield
C

t Beaconsfield Ct

Farrington Cir

Dur
ha

m
C

t

Coventry Ln

S
urrey

C
t

Abbey Rd

Preston Ct

Hamilton Ct

Briarwood Ln

Northampton Ln

Briarwood Ln

Ashford

Ct

Beaconsfield
Ct

Beaconsfield
Ct

M
ilw

aukee Ave
M

ilw
aukee Ave

Abbey
R d

±
NonVillage_WaterService

AVL 5/18/2018

0 410 820205
Feet

Map Legend
Out of VIllage Sewer Service (104 addresses)



AGENDA ITEM
3.21 COW

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING

SEPTEMBER 10, 2018

Subject: Proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Village of Lincolnshire Goals

Action Requested: Consideration and Discussion of Proposed Goals for FY2019
Originated 
By/Contact: Village Manager/Department Managers

Referred To: Village Board

Summary / Background: Annually, as part of the budget process, staff develops proposed 
goals for the coming fiscal year. Following are the goals and objectives for Fiscal Year 2019
identified by each Village Department. The first section outlines goals for FY2019 applicable to 
all Village departments, followed by department specific goals. Village Board consideration and
feedback of the proposed goals is requested.

PROPOSED - FISCAL YEAR 2019 GOALS

All Village Departments
Vehicle Leasing Initiative: Investigate multiple leasing options for all Village vehicles in 
the areas of Administration, Community and Economic Development, Police, and Public 
Works. Work with departments to evaluate the program and identify if it is beneficial for 
the Village to pursue.

Finalize Technology Strategic Plan: The GovIT Consortium completed a 3-Year 
Strategic Plan in 2018. Work with Village’s information technology provider and to
update long-term technology plan to reflect both GovIT Consortium strategic plan 
priorities and incorporate Lincolnshire specific information technology initiatives into a 
single plan.

Update Performance Evaluation Tool: Work with all departments to review existing 
performance evaluation tool and update as necessary.  Ensure performance evaluation 
document reflects the Lincolnshire Way set of values.  Train all supervisors on 
performance evaluation best practices.

Pursue Opportunities for Municipal Partnering: Continue to investigate and
implement opportunities to partner with other governmental entities for the procurement 
of goods and services where appropriate.

Evaluate Annexation of Desirable Properties: Continue the evaluation of properties 
identified by the Mayor and Board of Trustees as desirable for annexation. Work with 
property owners and developers to meet Village vision for growth and development.



AGENDA ITEM
3.21 COW

Continue Work with Northern Illinois Benchmarking Cooperative: Continue work 
with members of the Northern Illinois Benchmarking and University of Illinois at Chicago 
on Year Two of benchmarking Police Department services.  Work with Cooperative on 
incorporating Lincolnshire-Riverwoods Fire Protection District in Year Two.

Communication Policies & Procedures: Draft and implement formalized 
communication policies and procedures to promote appropriate, timely, and 
standardized communication with internal and external stakeholders. Assign 
departmental delegates capable of updating social media/website as community events 
happen.

Ongoing Comprehensive Fee Review: Focus review on Connection and Permit fees 
for all departments.

Complete a Comprehensive Review of Subdivision Regulations: Recommend 
updates to Title 7 Subdivisions and Land Development Chapter of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code as necessary.

Comprehensive Facilities Master Plan: Develop comprehensive detailed capital 
improvements plans for the Public Works facility. Complete facilities master plan for 
Village Hall (started 2018). Incorporate results into 10-Year Capital Improvement Plan to
better reflect the financial needs of the Villages facilities.

Administration
Develop Village of Lincolnshire Strategic Plan: Work with Village staff, elected 
officials and stakeholders on creation of Lincolnshire strategic plan and update to Village 
mission statement. Facilitate planning process to explore community strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, and threats to build an action plan and address long-term 
Village needs.

Compensation Study: Select and work with consultant to complete a classification and 
compensation study for the Village of Lincolnshire to determine if employee pay is 
appropriate for current labor market, develop non-union compensation structure, and 
conduct review of job descriptions. 

Document Management:  Research, recommend, and implement formal document 
management system to integrate with new enterprise software system if cost effective.

Community & Economic Development
Community Enhancement Program Improvements:  Complete community 
enhancement program improvements pertaining to code enforcement and property 
maintenance standards including public education, standardized enforcement 
processing, and increasing use of technology for field work.

Create Formal Volunteer Program: Develop program guidelines/procedures to solicit 
and manage volunteers for all Village special events. Increase participation of religious 
organizations in community events to provide volunteer support.



AGENDA ITEM
3.21 COW

Continue Work on Update to Village Brand Identity:  Pending Village Board direction, 
update print and electronic media as appropriate as part of initial roll out of new brand 
and marketing initiative.

Finalize Development of Zoning/Design-Oriented Regulations to ensure 
Residential Character/Integrity: Finalize bulk regulations of all Residential Zoning 
Districts to ensure Village vision is met and analyze the necessity of varying degrees of 
design-standards/review to support preservation of residential character.  

Finance Department Goals
BS&A Financial Forecast Component: Research advantages/disadvantages to 
implementing the BS&A financial forecast component, including importing data to the
existing spreadsheets used in the development of the five-year financial forecast.

Debt Restructure/ Refinance: Refinance SSA Sedgebrook bonds if savings justify 
issuance.

Fraud Awareness Training:  Prepare Fraud Awareness Training program and present 
to staff.  Management and purchasing staff should understand the importance in 
preventing and detecting fraudulent disbursements.  Enhance Lincolnshire’s opportunity 
to receive grant funds with Fraud Awareness Training compliance.

Insurance Broker Services: Prepare RFP for multi-year insurance broker services and 
execute contract.

Local Government Debt Recovery (LGDR): Complete LGDR application process and
deploy LGDR program for Lincolnshire’s police tickets.

Time and Attendance aka Scheduling Software: Review possible alternative software 
to improve schedule reporting.  The solution must interface with existing Paylocity payroll
system.

Utility Tax Audit Services: Provide assistance and necessary data to utility tax audit 
service provider.  Analyze findings and execute appropriate collection efforts.

Police Department
Develop Departmental Communication Strategy: Develop a comprehensive 
communication strategy for engaging residents regarding emergencies, special events, 
and items of public interest.

Oversee Dispatch Transition: Complete the transfer to the new police dispatch center.

Resources/Schedule: Implement and assess the new 10-hour patrol scheduling format.

Records Section: Review all police records functions to improve the quality and 
efficiency of services.



AGENDA ITEM
3.21 COW

Develop Recommendation and Implementation Plan for Body-Worn Camera 
Technology: Report and recommend to the Village Board Implementation Plan for 
body-worn camera technology.

Public Work Department Goals
Succession Planning and Employee Development Initiatives: Continue to provide 
career path and succession planning for the Public Works Department. Adjust job 
descriptions and duties as needed. Provide information on redevelopment of Public 
Works office area in conjunction with succession plan. Increase Professional 
Development training throughout Public Works and encourage certifications in multiple 
areas. 

Increase Use of GIS/Mobile Technology: Work with GIS representatives to identify 
and implement ways to utilize GIS technology within Public Works Department with a 
goal of increasing efficiency. Conduct multiple GIS related training sessions throughout 
the year. Investigate the potential use for GIS-based Asset Management as it relates to 
each division of Public Works. 

Comprehensive Pavement Preservation Plan: Develop a pavement preservation plan 
for residential and corporate center streets based on information gathered during the 
2018 pavement analysis project. Establish the expectations for how long pavements 
should last and different treatments that can be utilized (e.g., crack sealing, micro 
surfacing, patching) to maintain the pavement conditions in a satisfactory condition until 
they can be rehabilitated as part of a capital improvement project.

Evaluate Athletic Field Usage Policy/Fees: Continue to evaluate the Village’s current 
Athletic Field Usage Policy and Fee’s related to this policy. Evaluate the affiliate 
approval process and make changes as needed. Implement any identified changes as 
necessary including fee changes and/or Village Code Amendments.  

Village Sign Replacement Initiatives: Research all streets and/or parks signs, posts, 
lights and make recommendations on replacement and/or update as a result of the 
Village branding initiative. Include recommendation for parks entrance signs and entry 
way signs within 10-Year Capital Improvement Program.

Work with Park Board on Possible Update to Recreation, Parks, Paths & Open 
Space Master Plan: Investigate needs, identify capital improvements and incorporate 
into plan. Incorporate way-finding signage, lighting, seating and landscaping elements to 
encourage pedestrian flow along Milwaukee Avenue and into Commercial Downtown 
area.

Emergency/Backup Water Interconnect: Finalize design and bid work for Emergency 
Water Supply connection to Village of Buffalo Grove.  Develop intergovernmental 
agreement with Village of Buffalo Grove for recommendation and approval by Village 
Board.



 

Agenda Item 
3.41 COW 

 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole Meeting 

September 10, 2018 
 

Subject:  Agreement Pertaining to the Regulation of Traffic and Parking on 
Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 Property 

 
Action Requested: 

 
Consideration of a Resolution Approving an Agreement Pertaining to 
the Regulation of Traffic and Parking on Lincolnshire-Prairie View 
School District 103 Property 

 
Originated By/Contact: 

 
Joseph Leonas, Chief of Police 
  

 
Referred To:  

 
Village Board 

 
Summary / Background: 
Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 wishes to enter into an agreement with the Village of 
Lincolnshire for the regulation of traffic and parking on the Lincolnshire-Prairie View School 
District 103 properties located at 1370 N. Riverwoods Road, 2425 Riverwoods Road and 239 
Olde Half Day Road.  The initial term of this new agreement is for five (5) years and will 
automatically renew for up to three (3) additional five-year terms unless cancelled by either 
party. 
 
This agreement allows the Police Department to enforce various traffic and parking regulations 
on Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 property that are unenforceable absent this 
agreement.  Staff has met with officials from Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 to 
discuss signage needs.  They are aware they are responsible for the cost of erecting 
appropriate signage on the property. 
 
Budget Impact: 
None 
  
Service Delivery Impact: 
Approval of this agreement will allow the Police Department to take enforcement action. 
  
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the resolution, as presented. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

� Proposed Resolution 
� Agreement Pertaining to Regulation of Traffic and Parking on Lincolnshire-Prairie View 

School District 103 property 
     

Meeting History 
Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): September 10, 2018 
Regular Village Board Meeting:  

 
 



�
��������	
�����	�������

��	����	���	���
�
����	����	������	������������������������������	�����

��������	��	
����

���������������	������	���������������
�������		����������������	��������

�
�
�������������	
����������	�������������������	���������������	��������	��

�����
��	��������������	���������
���������������� ��
�������������������	
���������
������
������������	����������	
������������!��	��	
���
����
��	��������	"	�����
	����������
��	�
	!���������������
�#	����	��
������������	��
��������������	�$������ ������!���$�%�����

�
�������������	
��&��������	�����������&'(������	���������������	��������	��

�����
��	��������������	�����
	!����	���	���
)��!���������� ��	��������	��
��������������
��
)��!��
	�%�����

�
�������� ����������
	�*
��
�	�+�	���������,���
�����'-�������	������-�'�./�

0�#	
������0�����&1&��0�#	
������0���������&-(�2��	�3����,�$�0�����������������
����
�������������	���
��
��	�������������	�+����!	��������������
	%�����

�
����������	�����������
	�*
��
�	�+�	���������,���
�����'-�����
	4�	��	�������

��	�+����!	��������������
	���������*����	�,	��
��	���
	!����	��
���������
)��!��������	���
��������
��	
�$%�����

�
�	�������
	������������	����� $���	�+����!	��������������
	�����������5�
�
����	���/������	����	
�������������6�	�����������
	�+����!	�7��
��

�	
	 $����
�#	����	�8!
		�	����	
������!������	�
	!������������
������������
)��!����
����������
	�*
��
�	�+�	���������,���
�����'-��
��	
�$/�

�
����	���/��6����0	��������������� 	�����������
�	�����	��	����
����������	
�����

�����!	�����
�#��������� ������������������	����
������
�#��	�� $����/�
�
*8��9,������::���$����:::::��&'�;/�

8<9�5��

.8<�5���

87�9.65��

8**02+9,������::���$����:::::��&'�;/�

� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � ��
� � � � � � =�$�
�9���� 	���>/�7
�����
8669�65�
�
� � � � � :::�
��
+����!	���	
)�7�
 �
��=������
	���









 

Agenda Item 
3.42 COW 

 

 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole 

September 10, 2018 
 

Subject: Reciprocal Reporting Agreement Between Lincolnshire-Prairie View 
School District #103 and Village of Lincolnshire 

 
Action Requested: 

 
Consideration and Approval of the Reciprocal Reporting Agreement 

Originated 
By/Contact: 

 
Joseph Leonas, Chief of Police 

 
Referred To:  

 
Village Board 

 
Summary / Background: 
 
The Lincolnshire Police Department and Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District #103 have 
drafted a proposed Reciprocal Reporting Agreement in order to foster cooperation and improve 
the flow of information between educators and law enforcement officials. This agreement is 
established and maintained under the authority of Section 10-20.14 of the Illinois School Code, 
and in compliance with Sections 1-7 and 5-905 of the Juvenile Court Act.   
 
Village Attorney Adam Simon and the attorney for Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District #103 
have reviewed the proposed reporting agreement.  
 
The Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District #103 Board of Education met and reviewed the 
Agreement.  On August 21, 2018, the Agreement was approved and signed by School Board 
President Anna van Gerven. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests Village Board consideration and approval of this Agreement as submitted. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

� Proposed Agreement 
 

Meeting History 
Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): September 10, 2018 
  
Regular Village Board Meeting:  

 














	1.0 Agenda
	2.1 08-27-2018 Minutes
	3.11_3.13_2018_23344IndianCreek_23477Elm_Sub_WaterConnect
	3.21_FY2019_Goals
	3.41_2018_09_10_Dist 103_Traffic_Agreement
	3.42_2018_09_10_Reciprocal_Reporting_D103

	Return to Agenda: 


